
REPORT FROM 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
 
 
Date:  CAO File No. 0220-05151-0270 

Council File No. 18-0628
Council District: All 

To:  The Council 
 

From:  Richard H. Llewellyn, Jr., City Administrative Officer 
 
Reference: State of California Homeless Emergency Aid Program  

 
Subject: State Homeless Emergency Aid Program (HEAP) – Ninth Quarterly Expenditure 

Report (January 1 – March 31, 2021) and Funding Recommendations 
 
  
SUMMARY 
 
This is the ninth quarterly expenditure report on the City’s $85,013,607 State of California Homeless 
Emergency Aid Program (HEAP) grant award (January 1 – March 31, 2021). As of March 31, 2021, 
the City had committed 100 percent of these funds; and expended 83 percent of the grant. The City 
is on track to meet the HEAP 100 percent expenditure deadline of June 30, 2021. The remaining 
unexpended balance is allocated to the Board of Public Works, Bureau of Engineering, Bureau of 
Sanitation, General Service Department, Housing and Community Investment Department, and the 
Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority (LAHSA). These departments and LAHSA have 
confirmed that the funds will be expended by the expenditure deadline.  
 
This report provides the status of HEAP commitments and expenditures through March 31, 2021, 
and funding recommendations to meet the expenditure deadline of the earned interest from its 
HEAP allocation, which is September 30, 2021. As this is the final expenditure deadline, this Office 
will continue monitoring unexpended balances to ensure that City grant funds are not recaptured 
by the State.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the City Council, subject to the Mayor’s approval: 

 
1. RECOGNIZE $61,496.84 in interest earned on the Homeless Emergency Aid Program 

(HEAP) grant receipts in Fund 60P, RSRC 4903 as of April 30, 2021, and allocate to HEAP 
Activity Category 3 Capital, Operating, Services – Citywide (Activity Category 3) within Fund 
60P, Department 10;  
 

2. RECOGNIZE up to $49,389.09 in interest earned on the Homeless Emergency Aid Program 
(HEAP) grant receipts in Fund 60P, RSRC 4903 through June 30, 2021, and allocate to 
HEAP Activity Category 3 Capital, Operating, Services – Citywide (Activity Category 3) within 
Fund 60P, Department 10; 
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3. APPROVE up to $110,885.93 from the HEAP Activity Category 3 Capital, Operating, 
Services – Citywide for the Board of Public Works to continue Citywide hygiene services, 
through the Pit Stop program, from July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021, which will reduce 
the Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention Program (HHAP) allocation for this 
program; 
 

4. AUTHORIZE the City Administrative Officer to: 
 

a. Prepare Controller instructions or make any necessary technical adjustments to 
implement the intent of these transactions, and authorize the Controller to implement 
these instructions; and 

b. Prepare any additional Controller instructions to reimburse City Departments for their 
accrued labor, material or permit costs related to projects in this report consistent with 
the Mayor and Council action on this matter and authorize the Controller to implement 
these instructions. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Status of HEAP Commitments, Expenditures, and Interest Earned  
 
As of March 31, 2021, $86,617,799 or 100 percent of State of California Homeless Emergency Aid 
Program (HEAP) funds, including interest, had been committed. A total of $71,931,201 or 83 
percent, including interest, had been expended and $14,686,598, or 17 percent remained 
unexpended.  
 
Since the HEAP eighth quarterly report was approved:  
 

 $734,379.60 was allocated to the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority from the HEAP 
Activity Category 2 - Capital and Operating Support – Skid Row (Activity Category 2) for the 
cost of operations at the year-round interim housing site at 534 Crocker Street, extended 
Winter Shelter site at 566 South San Pedro Street, financial assistance and supportive 
services for Rapid Rehousing slots through SRO Housing Corporation in the Skid Row area 
(C.F. 20-0841); 

 $1,471,730 was reprogrammed from various allocations to the HEAP Activity Category 1 - 
Capital and Operating Support - A Bridge Home (Activity Category 1) to fund construction 
costs for a tiny home village at 6073 North Reseda Boulevard in Council District 3, which 
reduced the Federal Coronavirus Relief Fund allocation for this project (Krekorian-
Blumenfield, C.F. 21-0447); 

 $135,981.74 was reprogrammed within the HEAP Activity Category 2 to the Los Angeles 
Homeless Services Authority for furniture, fixtures, and equipment at four (4) cooling center 
sites and one-time landscaping costs for saw cutting and planting trees for the ReFresh Spot 
in the Skid Row area (De Leon-Buscaino, C.F. 21-0508); and 

 $364,762.18 was reprogrammed from various allocations to the HEAP Activity Category 1 
and 2 to fund construction costs for a tiny home village at Arroyo Drive and Avenue 60 in 
Council District 14 which will reduce the Federal Coronavirus Relief Fund allocation for this 
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project and to fund the Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority for Downtown Women’s 
Center for its Health and Wellness Program and San Julian Oasis Housing for constructions 
in Skid Row area (De Leon-Ridley-Thomas, C.F. 21-0564). 

 
Table 1 summarizes HEAP expenditures and commitments and reflects $64,299.82 in interest 
earnings allocated in the eighth HEAP Quarterly Expenditure Report, increasing the total HEAP 
grant, including interest, from $86,553,499 to $86,617,799. Attachment 1 provides additional detail.  
 

Table 1. Status of HEAP Commitments and Expenditures through March 31, 2021 

Activity Category Amount 
Total Funds 
Committed 

Uncommitted 
Funds 

Remaining Expended Unexpended 

1 

Capital and Operating 
Support – A Bridge 
Home $52,213,017 $52,213,017 $0 $46,397,844 $5,815,172.74 

2 
Capital and Operating 
Support – Skid Row $19,945,469 $19,945,469 $0 $13,381,394 $6,564,075.43 

3 
Capital, Operating, 
Services – Citywide $8,664,479 $8,664,479 $0 $7,847,972 $816,507.61 

4 Youth Set-Aside $3,624,068 $3,624,068 $0 $2,498,848 $1,125,219.46 

5 Administrative Costs $2,170,767 $2,170,767 $0 $1,805,144 $365,622.73 

Total $86,617,799 $86,617,799 $0 $71,931,201 $14,686,598 
*Includes $1,604,191.60 of interest earnings through December 31, 2020. 
 
Interest Earned on HEAP Deposits 
 
The City has earned an additional $61,496.84 in interest from its HEAP allocation since December 
31, 2020, and the City expects to earn up to $49,389.09 in interest from its HEAP allocation in May 
and June 2021. This Office recommends earned interest be allocated to HEAP Activity Category 3. 
The State requires that all interest proceeds be used for HEAP-eligible activities, and the new 
expenditure deadline of any interest accrued on HEAP funds is September 30, 2021. Consistent 
with Health and Safety Code Section 50214 (b), no more than five (5) percent of the total HEAP 
allocation plus interest proceeds may be used for general administrative purposes, and at least five 
(5) percent must be allocated to establishing or expanding services for youth experiencing 
homelessness or at risk of homelessness. This recommendation is consistent with State 
regulations. 
 
HEAP Commitments, General Fund Balances and Recommended Actions 
 
If the recommendations in this report are approved, up to $86,728,685, or 100 percent of the HEAP 
allocation (including estimated interest earnings through June 30, 2021) will be committed. A total 
of $71,931,201 or 82.9 percent of the new HEAP amount, including interest earned this quarter is 
expended, and $14,797,484, or 17.1 percent is unexpended. The unexpended balance is allocated 
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to the Board of Public Works, Bureau of Engineering, Bureau of Sanitation, General Service 
Department, Housing and Community Investment Department, and the Los Angeles Homeless 
Services Authority (LAHSA).  These departments and LAHSA have confirmed that the funds will be 
expended by June 30, 2021. Table 2 below summarizes this information.  
 
Table 2. Status of HEAP Commitments and Expenditures if Report Recommendations are Approved 

Activity Category Amount 
Total Funds 
Committed 

Uncommitted 
Funds 

Remaining Expended Unexpended 

1 
Capital and Operating 
Support – A Bridge Home $52,213,017 $52,213,017 $0.00 $46,397,844 $5,815,173 

2 
Capital and Operating 
Support – Skid Row $19,945,469 $19,945,469 $0.00 $13,381,394 $6,564,075 

3 
Capital, Operating, 
Services – Citywide $8,775,365 $8,775,365 $0.00 $7,847,972 $927,394 

4 Youth Set-Aside $3,624,068 $3,624,068 $0.00 $2,498,848 $1,125,219 

5 Administrative Costs $2,170,767 $2,170,767 $0.00 $1,805,144 $365,623 

Total $86,728,685 $86,728,685 $0.00 $71,931,201 $14,797,484 
*Includes estimated $1,715,077.53 of interest earnings through June 30, 2021. 
**Activity Category 1 includes $700,000 for Aviva Children and Family Services for a facility for Transition Aged Youth 
(TAY). Total HEAP funding committed for Youth services and facilities is $4,324,067.55 (5.0%).  
***Unexpended balance $14,797,484 is based on expenditures through March 2021, and associated departments 
confirmed that these funds will be expended by the State deadline.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
 
There is no impact to the General Fund as a result of the recommendations in this report. Sufficient 
funding is available within the Homeless Emergency Aid Program to support the recommendations 
in this report.  
 
FINANCIAL POLICIES STATEMENT 
 
The recommendations in this report comply with the City’s Financial Policies. 
 
Attachment: 
 

HEAP Funding Commitments and Expenditures through March 31, 2021 
 
RHL:YC:MB:CN:16210104 
















